
DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

22654 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

Downtown Hayward Improvement Association – Annual Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Tuesday, November 14th, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. 

In-Person: Lincoln Landing Mezzanine Room, 22335 Foothill Blvd. Hayward, CA.  94541 
Zoom Virtual Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86531920693 

Meeting ID: 865 3192 0693 | Passcode: 740490 | Call-In: +1 (669) 444-9171 

1. Introductions and Meeting Etiquette/Resti Zaballos, Jr., Board President

2. Public Comment & Announcements (3 Minutes Max Per Person)

3. Approval of the September 14th, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes Action Item 

4. Report from the Nominations Committee for open seats to the Board, determination of
qualifications by staff (pending report from the City on payments):
a. Nominations and recommendations from the Committee for appointment to the Board:

I. Property Owner Directors Nominated: Action Item 
i. Resti Zaballos (22320 Foothill Blvd.) 

ii. Sara Buizer (777 B Street) 
iii. Bill Matheson (22268 Foothill Blvd.) 
iv. Crystal Sampson (22335 Foothill Blvd.) 
v. Seung-Yen Hong (BART) 

vi. Alejandro Gamarra (1082 B Street) 
II. Community At Large Directors Nominated: Action Item 

i. Alfredo Rodriguez (1037 B Street) 

5. Committee Reports
Executive Committee / Resti Zaballos Jr., President
a. Election of Officers for one-year terms:

I. Board President Action Item 
II. Vice President Action Item 

III. Secretary Action Item 
IV. Treasurer Action Item 

b. YTD Draft Financial Report Action Item 
c. Proposed FY2024 Annual Budget: Assign to Exec. & Committee Chairs to

Develop and Return in December with a Finalized Budget  Action Item 

Sidewalks Operations, Beautification & Order Committee / Sara Buizer, Chair 
a. District Works Monthly Maintenance Report: Review
b. District Pressure Washing Recertification: Update

1

P. 3 - 7

P. 8 - 15

P. 16

P. 17 - 19

P. 20 - 25

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86531920693?pwd=VmM96MlraoQEx0QgYjt71wL0jXTOOJ.1


c. DHIA Proposal to City for Supplemental Services in Downtown: Update
d. B Street Lighting Re-Wrapping Project: Update

District Identity & Streetscape Improvement Committee / Alfredo Rodriguez, Chair 
a. Olive Public Relations Status Report: Review
b. Holiday Banner Installation & Downtown Décor: Update
c. Downtown Holiday Window Decorating Guide & Program: Update
d. New District-Wide Banner Program to Launch Q1 2024: Update

Land Use Committee / Bill Matheson, Chair 
a. New Fiber Connectivity in Downtown: Update

6. Other New Business

7. Next Meeting: _______________________________________ 

8. Adjournment Action Item 

BROWN ACT.  Government Code 54950 (The Brown Act) requires that a brief description of each item to be transacted or 
discussed be posted at least 72 hours prior to a regular meeting.  The Corporation posts all Board and Committee agendas at 
22654 Main Street, Hayward CA. 94541 and on the DHIA website.  Action may not be taken on items not identified as such and 
posted on the agenda.  Meeting facilities may be accessible to persons with disabilities.  If you require special assistance to 
participate in the meeting, notify Dominic LiMandri at (510) 556-1278 or via email at downtownhayward@gmail.com at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting.  

2

P. 26

P. 27 - 39

P. 40 - 41
P. 42



DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

22654 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

Downtown Hayward Improvement Association - Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Thursday, September 14th, 2023 10:00 a.m.  

Lincoln Landing Mezzanine Conference Room 
22335 Foothill Blvd. Hayward, CA  94541 

Present: Thomas Leung, Al Antonini, Resti Zaballos, Ben Schweng, Sara Buizer, Crystal Sampson, 

Alex Husary, Dinesh Shah (telephone), Daniel Mao 

Absent:  Bill Matheson, Debra Castles, Alfredo Rodriguez 

Guests:  Andrew Jones (District Works), Chris Boss (District Works), Delante Johnson Hooper 
(District Works), Eleanor Lazar & Cree Jones (Olive PR)  

Staff: Marco Li Mandri, Dominic Li Mandri (via tablet), Nick Yoo (New City America) 

MINUTES: 

Item Discussion Action Taken? 

1. Introductions Resti Zaballos opened the meeting at 10:05 am. 
Introductions were made. Marco and Nick Yoo from 
New City America were present.  Dominic Li Mandri 
was present via video due to previous commitment in 
San Diego that day.  

No action taken 

2. Non-Agenda
Public Comment

Nicholas Yoo (New City America) provided a brief 
report on some of the businesses that have opened 
and closed in the area. He mentioned CVS was leaving 
and that they had already taken down their sign. 
Recent openings include Blue Crown Bistro and Habit 
Burger. Eastbay Eats (ghost kitchen) is expected to 
open in November 2023.  

Sara Buizer mentioned that Arthur Macs is opening 
off-location but is expected to open in 2024.  
She also mentioned that there has been no progress 
with Art  Crabshack’s replacement and also that the 
Main Street/B street apartment construction has 
been delayed/cancelled.  

No action taken 

3. Approval of the The minutes of the July 16th, 2023 meeting were Ben motioned to 

3



       

2 
 

July 16th, , 2023 
Board Minutes 

reviewed.  Board members took time to review the 
minutes as presented.  

approve the July 
16th minutes and 
Thomas seconded 
the approval of the 
July 16th minutes as 
presented. The 
motion was 
approved 
unanimously.    

4. Committee 
Reports: 
Executive 
Committee / Resti 
Zaballos  

 
a. FY 2023 YTD Draft 

Budget 
 
b. Board Vacancy 

Appointment: 
Daniel Mao (City 
of Hayward) 

 
 
 
 
 
c. Appointment of 

Annual 
Nominations 
Committee & 
Annual Meeting 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 

 
d. New Staff 

Onboarding 
Progress & 
Strategic Priorities 

a. The YTD rough draft financial report was 
reviewed as it was part of the Board packet.  
Marco stated, because the report was only 
through May, that $414,499 has been received 
from the City for FY 23’s DHIA’s property tax 
payments.  That leaves our gross receipts 
accounts receivable down to $208,754, which 
should be received in July or August.   

 
b. Daniel Mao was introduced to the Board to serve 

as Jennifer Lobedan’s replacement from the 
second City seat on the Board. He is on the 
economic development team for the City of 
Hayward. 

 
 
 
 
c. The Annual meeting is normally held between 

Labor Day and Thanksgiving. Marco stated that 
the Bylaws state that the President is to select 
two Board members to serve on the Task Force 
with him. Marco mentioned they would talk with 
Resti in the future about the process going 
forward.  The secretary and President will send 
out a letter to all property owners in the District 
inquiring if they would like to serve on the Board 
of Directors.  

 
 
d. Nick Yoo had his 90-day review.  New City 

America has been very pleased with Nick’s 
performance in serving as the Asst. District 
Manager for Downtown.  Marco stated that with 
Nick in place, someone would be able to monitor 
the maintenance vendor daily  and reach out to 
all of the business owners in the District.    

a. Sara moved and 
Al seconded 
approval of the 
YTD Rough Draft 
Financial Report. 
The motion was 
unanimously 
approved. 
 
b. Sara moved and 
Resti seconded 
accepting Daniel as 
the City’s second 
Board member The 
motion was 
unanimously 
approved. 
 
c. Ben moved and 
Thomas seconded 
authorizing Resti 
and staff to set up 
a Nominations 
Task Force to 
coordinate Board 
solicitation for the 
Annual meeting. . 
 
 
 
d. No Action Taken 

4



3 

Sidewalk Operations, 
Beautification & 
Order / Sara Buizer  

a. District
Maintenance
Services Vendor
Transition: District
Works
Introductions

b. Increased BACS
Outreach Services
for Downtown
Hayward - Update

c. Downtown Public
Security Camera
Pilot - Update

d. B Street Trees
Lighting
Upgrades: Review
of Proposals

a. District Works, the new maintenance team for
downtown Hayward, introduced themselves and
explained the scope of their services to the Board.
Andrew Jones, the owner of District Works,
provided some background on the company, and
summarized some of the services they offer. A
thorough discussion followed. Sara is setting up a
meeting with Andrew Jones and his staff and key
people in the City for a smooth transition

b. Sara provided an update on BACS outreach
services. She explained that many of the
unhoused are declining available services and
refusing help/treatment. As a result, the SOBO
Committee has decided not to explore enhancing
the BACS program for downtown Hayward.

c. Dominic provided an update on the security
camera pilot system. District Works mentioned
they provided some of these services to their
districts in Oakland and had good success.
Andrew offered a tour of the district to see their
camera system and how it functioned.

d. Nick and Dominic provided a report of the tree
lighting upgrades. There were two companies
that submitted proposals (SF Holiday Lights and
San Francisco Holiday Lighting, Inc). After
discussing with the SOBO Committee, it was
decided to go with SF Holiday Lights due to cost
and scheduling. SF Holiday Lights had a more
affordable cost and was willing to work on the
project in a more timely fashion than the other
company. They also had a good reputation with
District Works who also worked with them in
some of their other districts. The board requested
Nick and Dominic to go forward with SF Holiday
Lights for the tree trunk wrap lighting but wanted
to see if they could get the lights installed more
quickly than their expected installation date even
if it meant paying a little more. The consensus
was to approve with a not to exceed $50,000
dollar amount for this project.

a. No Action Taken

b. No Action Taken

c. No Action Taken

d. Ben moved and
Daniel seconded
selecting SF
Holiday lighting to
wrap the streets –
not to exceed
$49,999. The
motion was
approved
unanimously. Ben
mentioned that the
lights should be
277 voltage.

District Identity & 
Streetscape 

a. Dominic reviewed the latest stats on PR and Social
Media exposure. Eleanor provided a report on PR

a. No Action Taken

5



       

4 
 

Improvement (DISI) / 
Alfredo Rodriguez 
(Chair) 
 
a. Olive Status 

Report: 
 

b. Downtown 
Seasonal Banner 
Program: Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Downtown Event 
Sponsorship 
Requests – 
Possible 
Recommendation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
d. Downtown Holiday 

Décor Ideas: 
Update 

 
 

e. DHIA Website 
Redesign & 
Improvement: 
Review 

 

and Cree provided a report on the social media 
exposure for the District facilitated by Olive PR.  

 
 
 
 
 
b. Dominic reported he is working with the 

Committee on developing a seasonal banner 
program that will be installed cyclically through the 
year (likely by Quarter). Dominic reported first 
steps will be to assess the current inventory of 
banner poles in downtown.  The banners may 
include famous people who grew up in Hayward.  
Chrystal mentioned that she has some banner 
poles that could be used.   

 
c. Dominic reported that there were three 

sponsorship requests. The first request was from 
Alfredo for the Vintage Alley car show. Originally 
the sponsorship request was for $11,000 dollars 
but since the event passed and saw he didn’t need 
as much money; he adjusted the sponsorship 
request to $6,000 dollars. The second sponsorship 
request was from Frank (Chamber of Commerce) 
for the Mariachi Festival. This sponsorship request 
was for $3,000 dollars. The final request was from 
the Hayward Historical society and gave some 
choices for sponsorship. After discussion, the 
board chose the $1,000 dollar sponsorship.   

 
d. Dominic provided an update on the holiday décor 

ideas. Dominic and Nick would work together to 
come up with some holiday décor ideas.  

 
 
e. Dominic reported he will be working with the 

Committee to review the DHIA website and 
consider options to maximize its web-traffic in both 
optimization and possible redesign. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
b. No Action Taken 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c. Sara moved and 
Ben seconded the 
the proposed 
sponsorships be 
accepted and 
funded.  The 
motion was 
approved 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

d. No Action Taken 
 
 
 
 
e. No Action Taken 
 
 

Land Use Committee 
/ Bill Matheson 
(Chair) 
 
a. Main Street 

a. Nick Yoo provided a brief report of the main street 
complete street projected. Construction is expected 
to start Feb 2024.  

a. No Action Taken 
 
 

6



5 

Complete Street 
Project 

5. Other Business No other business was discussed. 5. No Action Taken

6. Next Board
Meeting

The next Board of Directors meeting will be the Annual 
Board meeting and will be held on Nov, 14th at 10 a.m. 
at Lincoln Landing. 

6. Resti moved and
Alex seconded
adjournment of the
Board meeting .

Minutes taken by Nick Yoo and Marco Li Mandri, New City America 

7



DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

22650 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

ARTICLE 4: DIRECTORS 

Section 1.  Number and Term 
The Corporation shall have a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of seventeen (17) Directors 
and collectively they shall be known as the Board of Directors.  The exact number of Directors 
shall be fixed from time-to-time by resolution by the Board of Directors.  Subject to the foregoing 
provisions for changing the number of Directors, the following seats shall be allocated to the 
Board of Directors:  

A) No less than a two-thirds majority of the seats on the Board of Directors at all times shall
be filled by Property Owner Directors (as defined in Section 2 of this Article 4).  Each
property within the district boundaries, based upon the legal status of ownership, is
entitled to appoint only one representative to serve on the Board of Directors.

B) The balance of seats shall be filled by Community at Large Directors as defined in Section
2 of this Article 4).

C) Directors shall be elected for a term of two (2) years., However, following the first election
of Directors, one half (½) of the Property Owner Directors and one half (1/2 ) of the
Community Directors shall serve a term of one (1) year, and one-half (½) of the of the
Property Owner Directors and one half (½) of the Community Directors shall serve a term
of two (2) years.  The Directors may assign the one-year terms by unanimous agreement,
but in the absence of such agreement, the Directors receiving one-year terms shall be
chosen by lot at the meeting at which the election is held.  This staggering of terms will
ensure that the entire Board is not replaced within one calendar year. Directors’ terms
shall commence on the date of their election and expire on the date of the election of the
successor to the Director whose term is expiring.

Section 2.  Qualifications 
Members of the Board shall possess the following qualifications: 
A) Property Owner Directors shall be owners of real property within the boundaries of the

Downtown Hayward Community Benefit District (the “District”), who have made full
payment of all District assessments due for the previous and current fiscal years, or the
duly appointed authorized representative (as defined in these Bylaws) of such owner.

B) Community at Large Directors shall be persons who a) own and operate a business
located on property located within the boundaries of the District, or the duly appointed
authorized representative (as defined in these Bylaws) of such owner and operator; b)

8



are community members who reside within the boundaries of the District; c) are 
individuals who do not reside or operate a business within the District boundaries but 
who show a high degree of interest and concern for the welfare of the  District and who 
understand its connection to the community at large, and who the Board believes may 
assist the Corporation to fulfill its goals as a public benefit Corporation. 

C) A group of stakeholders consisting of the persons set forth in Exhibit “A” attached to these
Bylaws and who have placed their signatures on Exhibit “A”, is hereby-appointed upon
the execution of these Bylaws as an interim Board of Directors to oversee creation and
functioning of the Corporation including the adoption of the Articles of Incorporation, the
Bylaws of the Corporation, an initial governance plan, and the election of the First Board
of Directors.  The interim Board shall serve until they have elected a fully qualified Board
of Directors in accordance with these Bylaws.

Section 3.  Nomination and Election 
Not less than forty-five (45) days before the date set forth for the Annual meeting of the 
Directors, the President shall appoint at least three (3) Directors, at least two of whom shall be 
Property Owner Directors, as the Nominating Committee to solicit nominees for consideration 
for election as Directors.  The names so proposed, by the Committee shall be presented to the 
Board at its Annual meeting.  The Nominations Committee shall include the President and at least 
two other Directors.  

The Nominations Committee shall provide nomination forms to all eligible property owners and 
Directors.  The nomination forms shall be mailed out at least thirty (30) days prior to the date set 
for the annual meeting.  A due date of at least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting date 
shall be stated as the deadline for submitting nominations to the Nominations Committee. 

A) The nominees, who have been deemed to be qualified, consistent with these Bylaws shall
be presented to the Board for consideration of election to the Board at its annual meeting.

B) At the annual meeting, the Directors may vote to accept some, or all of the nominees
submitted by the Nominations Committee. The election of Directors shall comply with the
allocation provided in Section 1 of this Article 4.

Nominations may not be made from the floor but only in accordance with the procedures set 
forth in this Section 3 or such other procedures as may be determined by the Board. 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



Oct 23 Budget Jan - Oct 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Income
Assessment Income

Carry Forward 0.00 0.00 0.00 380,148.44 380,148.44
Assessment Income - Other 25,042.30 53,159.00 607,627.56 531,601.00 637,919.00

Total Assessment Income 25,042.30 53,159.00 607,627.56 911,749.44 1,018,067.44

Total Income 25,042.30 53,159.00 607,688.56 911,749.44 1,018,067.44

Expense
Administration

Accounting Fees 0.00 166.00 1,566.67 1,668.00 2,000.00
Bank Charges 0.00 5.00 68.00 50.00 60.00
Insurance - Liability, D and O 0.00 708.00 10,576.04 7,084.00 8,500.00
Legal Fees 0.00 250.00 1,374.00 2,500.00 3,000.00
Office Supplies 0.00 100.00 297.48 1,000.00 1,200.00
Postage, Mailing Service 17.81 25.00 191.27 250.00 300.00
Rent 1,200.00 1,200.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 14,400.00
Staff Consulting (New City) 10,000.00 10,000.00 82,500.00 82,500.00 102,500.00
Telephone, Telecommunications 2.49 300.00 147.18 3,000.00 3,600.00
Utilities 569.78 166.00 2,818.46 1,668.00 2,000.00
Admin Contingency 0.00 0.00 1,719.00 898.34 898.34

Total Administration 11,871.80 12,920.00 113,339.82 112,618.34 138,458.34

DISI
Advertising 361.57 250.00 2,273.78 2,500.00 3,000.00
Annual Report 0.00 166.00 0.00 1,668.00 2,000.00
Branding & Signage 0.00 0.00 3,578.69 0.00 0.00
PR / Social Media 4,500.00 4,500.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 54,000.00
Seasonal Displays 0.00 0.00 5,260.00 0.00 0.00
Special Events

Hot August Nights 0.00 0.00 15,500.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Latin Jazz Festival 0.00 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
May Festival 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Special Events - Other 0.00 1,750.00 10,000.00 17,500.00 21,000.00

Total Special Events 0.00 1,750.00 43,500.00 50,500.00 54,000.00

Staff Consulting (New City) 1,500.00 1,500.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 18,000.00
Website 0.00 0.00 893.14 0.00 0.00

Total DISI 6,361.57 8,166.00 115,505.61 114,668.00 131,000.00

SOBO
Fixed Assets - Major Purchase 18,725.00 0.00 18,725.00 0.00 0.00
Maintenance Contractor 0.00 38,533.33 192,206.13 278,933.34 356,000.00
Maintenance and Supplies 0.00 166.66 1,887.92 1,666.68 2,000.00
Payroll Expenses

Deductions 0.00 0.00 0.00 -300.00 -300.00
Payroll Workers Comp Ins 655.00 760.00 -112.00 7,600.00 9,120.00

Total Payroll Expenses 655.00 760.00 -112.00 7,300.00 8,820.00

2:50 PM Downtown Hayward Improvement Association
11/09/23 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Cash Basis October 2023

Page 1

17



Oct 23 Budget Jan - Oct 23 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Professional Services/ BACS 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 120,000.00
Security 0.00 4,166.66 0.00 41,666.68 50,000.00
Supplies for SOBO 0.00 400.00 513.01 4,000.00 4,800.00
Vehicle Related

Pressure Washing 1,506.54 300.00 4,325.52 3,000.00 3,600.00
Gas 0.00 330.00 2,368.42 3,300.00 3,960.00
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 0.00 50.00 2,938.01 500.00 600.00

Total Vehicle Related 1,506.54 680.00 9,631.95 6,800.00 8,160.00

Total SOBO 20,886.54 54,706.65 222,852.01 440,366.70 549,780.00

Contingency / Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 198,829.10 198,829.10

Total Expense 39,119.91 75,792.65 451,697.44 866,482.14 1,018,067.44

Net Income -14,077.61 -22,633.65 155,991.12 45,267.30 0.00

2:50 PM Downtown Hayward Improvement Association
11/09/23 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Cash Basis October 2023

Page 2

18



Nov 9, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Chase Checking 937971726 5,694.00
Checking at First Republic Ban 455,454.42

Total Checking/Savings 461,148.42

Total Current Assets 461,148.42

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -42,886.00
Fixed Assets 81,551.33

Total Fixed Assets 38,665.33

TOTAL ASSETS 499,813.75

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Payroll Liabilities
Federal Tax -936.93
State Tax 936.93

Total Payroll Liabilities 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 0.00

Total Current Liabilities 0.00

Total Liabilities 0.00

Equity
Unrestricted Net Assets 393,549.77
Net Income 106,263.98

Total Equity 499,813.75

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 499,813.75

2:51 PM Downtown Hayward Improvement Association
11/09/23 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of November 9, 2023

Page 1

19



Downtown
Hayward
Improvement
Association
Monthly Report

October 2023

20



DHIA MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT

October Recap
District Works (DW) and Downtown Hayward Improvement Association (DHIA) staff
have been working closely with City of Hayward’s Water Pollution Source Control
member Jaime Rosenberg to ensure compliance and begin appropriate pressure
washing services throughout DHIA. DW completed and filed a Mobile Washer Permit
Application Form while awaiting confirmation of a feasible location for discharge of
wash water. A sewer cleanout, in the sidewalk, directly in front of B Street Apartments
has been identified and the City of Hayward is entertaining this as a discharge point for
direction of wastewater to the sanitary sewer. Although the cleanout is in the public
right of way, this section is the responsibility of the building owner and requires
acknowledgement from the property. DHIA has contacted B Street Apartments for
property approval, which has been obtained and provided to the City of Hayward. Once
we receive confirmation from Mr. Rosenberg that our mobile washing permit has been
approved and the appropriate berms have arrived, we will be able to resume pressure
washing services. We anticipate the approvals and berms being completed in November
and will resume pressure washing services immediately thereafter.

With anticipation of inclement weather, place managers have begun use of the Billy
Goat Outdoor Litter Vacuum. Our staff have been notified of well known locations that
fill with leaves and potential flooding locations and we are prepared to remove debris
and monitor/report any major issues that arise during the next few months as weather
conditions dictate.

DISTRICT WORKS

21



DHIA MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT

Statistics Daily Average Monthly Total YTD Total

Business Contact 13 401 1136

Hospitality Escort or Directions Given 2 62 257

Trash Collected- Total Bags 22 693 1794

Trash Collected- Total Weight (lbs.) 559 17325 44839

Gra�ti Removed- Stickers 12 364 776

Gra�ti Removed- Paint 4 139 252

The DHIA Place Managers collected a total of 693 bags of trash during the month. To
estimate the weight of these bags, the industry standard is an average of 25 pounds per
bag. This resulted in the removal of an estimated 17,325 pounds of trash throughout
the district in October.

While we await pressure washing compliance, Place Managers successfully removed
503 instances of graffiti from the district through alternative graffiti abatement
practices. We categorize "small" graffiti as a 12"x 12" space that has been vandalized by
spray paint, stickers, unauthorized postings, etc.

With our Place Managers returning to 3 FTE we completed a total of 401 business
contacts. Additionally, we provided 62 hospitality escorts or directions to the
community.

DISTRICT WORKS

22



DHIA MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT

October Highlights
In preparation for the Holiday Season, District Works has installed sample wreath and
garland decoration for DHIA review. In addition, we have taken inventory of the current
decorations and hardware, and will plan to decorate all or every other decorative pole
(12’) on B Street from Montgomery to Foothill Boulevard with a wreath and garland
display similar to the photo below. We anticipate having the installation begin the week
prior to Thanksgiving and completed by the day after Thanksgiving in coordination with
the holiday light installation taking place on B Street.

DISTRICT WORKS

23



DHIA MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT

BEFORE & AFTER
22603 Main Street

1045 C Street

DISTRICT WORKS

24



DHIA MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT

BEFORE & AFTER
1045 C Street

About District Works
Building on our decade of experience managing multiple business improvement and
community benefit districts, District Works will work closely with your leadership to
achieve your organizational goals. We provide a wide variety of essential and
supplemental staffing services to implement and maintain your investment in
improvement and street beautification efforts.

By engaging with District Works, you are creating an extension of your team and
expanding the capacity of your organization to maximize its positive impact in your
community.

DISTRICT WORKS

25



DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

22654 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

October 27th, 2023 
Attn: Jeff Krump 
City of Hayward – Environmental Services Division 

DHIA Proposal for Supplemental Downtown Services – FY2023 

The Downtown Hayward Improvement Association (DHIA) has prepared the following proposal at the 
request of the City of Hayward to augment current services in downtown above and beyond our current 
contracted scope of services. The DHIA contracts with District Works, LLC to provide routine district 
maintenance services to our downtown district seven days a week, but for the purposes of this 
supplemental proposal, the DHIA is outlining additional areas/aspects for enhanced servicing and/or 
litter abatement in downtown exclusively. The areas/aspects the DHIA is proposing to cover includes, 
but is not limited to the following: enhanced (more frequent) litter & graffiti abatement on the sidewalk 
entrances/exits to Muni Lots #1 & #2; supplemental servicing of Big Belly receptacles above and beyond 
the contracted maintenance allotment stipulated in the City’s contract; additional evening coverage at a 
minimum of two (2) days a week; and enhanced litter abatement around Newman Park, Heritage Park, 
and the Children’s Park at Giuliani Plaza.  

For the next 8 months, not to exceed $50,000, the DHIA is proposing providing two (2) additional eight-
hour shifts per week, totaling 16 hours of additional manpower weekly in downtown (approx. 0.4 FTE). 
Here is the Budget Summary supplied by District Works to reflect this proposed staffing budget.  

Budget Summary 

Program Expenditures Section Totals % of Budget  

Compensation/Taxes/Insurance $17,946.23 35.90% 

Employee Benefits $2,136.68 4.27% 

Insurance & Taxes $9,308.69 18.62% 

Equipment/Tools/Supplies $6,552.93 13.10% 

Administration & OH Costs $4,560.80 9.12% 

District Works Profit $4,050.53 8.10% 

DHIA Administration $5,444.14 10.89% 

Total Program Expenses $50,000.00 100.00% 

Please do not hesitate to reach out to me with any questions or concerns you may have regarding this 
proposed expanded service model. Thank you for the opportunity to present this proposal to the City of 
Hayward for consideration. 

26



Downtown Hayward Improvement Association
Board Meeting
Tuesday, November 14, 2023

RECAP OVERVIEW
STRATEGY & PLANNING:

● Facilitated internal weekly strategy meetings
● Conducted weekly conference calls
● Daily community management and engagement
● Monitored and adjusted social media strategy to reflect news and announcements

Fall Events in Hayward

SECURED COVERAGE

● 10/26 secured online coverage on Patch

o Roundup of Halloween events in the Bay Area this weekend includes the Hayward Trunk

or Treat Heritage Plaza

● 10/24 secured online coverage on Diablo Magazine

o Roundup of Halloween events in the Bay Area this weekend includes the Hayward Trunk

or Treat Heritage Plaza

SECURED INTEREST

● 11/1 secured interest with Bay Area News Group

o Working on booze roundup and will include IPA Festival

Mariachi Festival

SECURED COVERAGE

● 9/29 secured broadcast coverage in KRON 4 (News at 2 pm)

● Segment included details about the Mariachi festival noting that there will be a taco

eating contest

● 9/29 secured broadcast coverage in KRON 4 (News at 5 am)

● Segment included details about the Mariachi festival noting that there will be a taco

eating contest

● 9/29 secured broadcast coverage in KRON 4 (News at 5am)

● Segment included details about the Mariachi festival noting that there will be a taco

eating contest

27



● 9/29 secured broadcast coverage in KTVU (Mornings on 2 at 4 am)

● Segment included details about the Mariachi Festival in Hayward

● 9/29 secured broadcast coverage in KTVU (Mornings on 2 at 5 am)

● Segment included details about the Mariachi Festival in Hayward

● 9/26 secured online coverage on Diablo Magazine

● Roundup of upcoming events in the Bay Area includes the Hayward Mariachi Festival with

details of the event a link to the website

● 9/26 secured online coverage on News Break

● Syndicated Diablo Magazine roundup of upcoming events in the Bay Area which includes

the Hayward Mariachi Festival with details of the event a link to the website

● 9/25 secured online coverage on Patch (Castro Valley)

● Feature includes all of the details of the Mariachi event including the taco-eating contest,

live music and Folklorico Dancers, a Beer & Margarita Garden for adults, a Kids Zone, and

mariachi bands

Hayward Revitalization

SECURED COVERAGE

● 10/10 secured print coverage in San Francisco Chronicle

● Feature highlights many aspects of the revitalization of Downtown Hayward including

Lincoln Landing, Buffalo Bills, Mad Butter Bakery, Blue Crown Bay & Bistro, and East Bay

Eats, and many of the other great things happening in the community

● 10/7 secured online coverage on San Francisco Chronicle

● Feature highlights many aspects of the revitalization of Downtown Hayward including

Lincoln Landing, Buffalo Bills, Mad Butter Bakery, Blue Crown Bay & Bistro, and East Bay

Eats, and many of the other great things happening in the community

● 10/6 secured online coverage on San Francisco Chronicle

● Roundup of East Bay food and beverage news includes the opening of Blue Crown Bistro

in Hayward with a mention of some of the menu items and link to the website

● 9/12 secured online coverage on SF Eater

● Roundup of Bay Area food and beverage news includes the opening of Blue Crown Bistro

in Hayward with a short description of the restaurant's offerings

● 9/12 secured online coverage on MSN

● Syndicated SF Eater roundup of Bay Area food and beverage news which includes the

opening of Blue Crown Bistro in Hayward with a short description of the restaurant's

offerings

● 9/5 secured online coverage on San Francisco Chronicle

● Roundup of restaurant news in the East Bay includes the re-opening of Buffalo Bill's

Brewery

● 9/5 secured online coverage on Flipboard

● Syndicated SF Chronicle roundup of restaurant news in the East Bay which includes the

re-opening of Buffalo Bill's Brewery

28



SECURED INTEREST

● 9/12 secured interest with Bay Area News Group

● Sharing new openings with restaurant writers

PITCHING
● Fall Events in Hayward Pitch

○ Local Online
○ Local Print
○ Local TV

● Mariachi Festival Pitch
○ Local Online
○ Local Print
○ Local TV

● Hayward Revitalization Pitch
○ Local Online
○ Local Print

WRITING
● Hayward Revitalization
● Fall Events in Hayward
● Small Business Season
● Revamped and New Businesses in Hayward

OTHER
● Submitted editorial calendars
● Monitored and clipped coverage
● Updated clip log
● Prepared weekly status reports
● Completed monthly report
● Coordinated media opportunities
● Refreshed media lists

SOCIAL MEDIA

Highlights/Recap:
● Gained 385 new followers across all platforms
● Garnered over 257K impressions across all platforms
● Garnered over 5.3K total engagements across all platforms

Upcoming:
● Continue to highlight and engage with local businesses
● Support events happening in downtown

Social Media Statistics (Last 60 Days as of Nov 9)

29



30



 

 
 

 

 

31



32



 
 
 

 

 

33



 
 

 

 

34



 

 
 

 

35



36



 
 

 

37



 

 
 

38



39



DOWNTOWN HAYWARD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION 

22654 Main Street  Hayward, CA 94541 

Holiday Decorating Program for Downtown Hayward [DRAFT] 

Greetings from the Downtown Hayward Improvement Association (DHIA)! 

Beginning on December 1st, the DHIA invites all Downtown Hayward businesses with visible storefront 

windows to welcome in the holiday season by participating in a window-decorating competition! The 

program criteria are simple: 1) create or commission a festive and whimsical holiday décor theme to 

showcase on your business windows; 2) submit a nomination (with picture) of your decorated storefront 

to the Downtown Hayward email address by December 1st; and 3) maintain your display through the 

week of December 25th. That’s it!  

The DHIA will provide social media highlights of the displays and businesses participating (only during 

the duration of the program) in an effort to drive customer traffic downtown this holiday season. 

Towards the end of the month, the DHIA will organize an online vote via social media for best storefront 

display amongst three (3) categories: Best Overall, Best Theme, Most Original. The DHIA will provide a 

cash prize to each category winner as a thank for participating. Our holiday gift to you!  

Is your business interested in being a part of this year’s window decorating contest? Please fill in the 

information on the next page and then we will reach out to you promptly! 

Here are some samples of what it could look like: 

40



Owner Name Business Name Contact Info (Email)

41



46-1

ATHERTO
N

ST

M
ST

N
 3R

D
 ST

RUBY ST

M
ISSION

BL

WARREN ST

RIO VISTA ST
MAIN ST

VA
LL

EY
 S

T

WARD ST

E ST

HOTEL AV

RIC
HA

RD
PL

PERALTA ST

C LAY ST

SIMON ST

D ST

ROSE S
T

SIM
ON ST

SUNSET BL

CARM
ELITA

DR

ARMSTRONG ST

HOLMES WY

SIMON ST

GRACE CT
SPIRE

ST

C ST

ROCKAWAY
LA

DOLE W
Y

B ST

R

IO
VISTA ST

2ND ST

SMALLEY AV

IM
PERIA

L P
L

WESTER N BL

P
R

O
S

PECT CT

N
 5TH

 S
T

ALLEY

DR

ACACIA 

ALICE ST

HIGH ST

GRACE ST

6THST

TERRACE AV

A ST 

GRAND
ST

ST
AFFORD AV

PROSPECT TE

CHESTNUT ST

5TH
 ST

OAKVIE
W

 AV

WESTERN BL

MEL
VIN

CT

CITY CENTER DR

5TH
 ST

FRANCISCO ST

3RD ST

1ST STW
ATKINS ST

FO
O

THILL BLVD 
SMALLEY AV

RUSSELL W
AY 

4TH ST

PROSPECT ST

MCKEEVER AV

REX R
D

HAZEL AV

BELLIN
A ST

MONTGOMERY
ST

UNNAMED
PEARCE ST

WALPERT ST

ATHER TON PL
0 500 1,000250 Feet

LEGEND

B ST

FO
O

THILL BLVD

B ST C ST

District Parcel 
District Boundary 
Parcel Not Included 

MISSION
BL

MAIN ST

M
AIN ST

FO
O

THILL BLVD

2ND ST 

2ND ST 

A ST 

MAPLE CT 

M
O

NTG
OM

ERY ST 

A ST 

A ST 

B ST 

B ST 

42

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Monica
Line

Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri


Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri



Dominic LiMandri




	bdSept14trh2023Mn
	DHIA_BoardAg_Nov14th2023 Final
	DHIA_BoardAg_Nov14th2023 Bylaws Excerpt
	DHIA Nomination Form - Zaballos
	DHIA Nomination Form - Buizer
	DHIA Nomination Form - Matheson
	DHIA Nomination Form - Sampson
	DHIA Nomination Form - Gamarra
	DHIA Nomination Form - Hong
	DHIA Nomination Form - Rodriguez
	DHIA_YTD_P&L_11-9-2023
	Report_from_Downtown_Hayward_Improvement_Association
	DHIA Monthly Report October 2023 (FINAL)
	DHIA Supplemental Service Proposal_October 27th, 2023
	110923_DHIA Board Meeting Agenda_November.docx
	100723_SFChronicle.com_00
	DHIA_Holiday Decorating Window Guide
	DHIA Cobra Lightpole Inventory Downtown



